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29.2 The recipients of donations for the year do not include any donee in whom a director or his spouse had 

any interest.

30. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
On financial assets

Income on short term investment and bank deposit 61,878 46,310
Gain on sale of short term investments 35,168 69,879

On non-financial assets

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,619 349
Scrap sales 1,448 814
Others 149 6,982

100,262 124,334

31. FINANCE COSTS

Interest / Mark-up on:
- long term borrowings 554,898 18,212
- short term borrowings 23,757 8,244

Accrued interest on payable to Workers' Profits
Participation Fund - note 20.2 4,034 -

Guarantee commission 2,096 979
Bank charges and others 11,479 6,094

596,264 33,529

32. TAXATION

Current
- for the year - note 32.1 57,873 793
- for prior years (97) -

57,776 793
Deferred - for the year (75,131) 104,450

(17,355) 105,243

32.1 Current year charge represents minimum tax at the rate of 0.5% of the turnover, in accordance with section

113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, inserted through Finance Act, 2009.

2008
(Restated)

Rupees

2009

2008
Rupees

2009
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32.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The tax on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Company’s applicable tax rates as follows:

2008
Rupees

2009

(Loss) / Profit before taxation (249,144) 458,528

Tax calculated at applicable rate of 35% (2008: 35%) (87,200) 160,485

Tax effect of exempt income and income subject
to lower tax rates (6,086) (23,665)

Un-recoupable minimum turnover tax 15,720 14,557

Effect of adjustments in opening written down
values and carried forward losses 60,211 (46,134)

Tax expense for the year (17,355) 105,243

33. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE – Basic and diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since the average market price

of the Company’s share is less than the exercise price of the share’s options granted to employees,

referred to in note 14. The basic earnings per share of the Company is based on:

(Loss) / Profit for the year (231,789) 353,285

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousand) 520,367 517,633

34. RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

The latest actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plans was carried out as at December 31, 2008 using

the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’. Details of the defined benefit plans are as follows:

2008
Rupees

2009
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2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Rupees

34.1 Balance sheet reconciliation

Present value of defined
benefit obligations 78,994 68,644 26,048 22,888 - -

Fair value of plan assets (88,607) (73,582) (27,618) (21,821) - -
(Surplus) / Deficit (9,613) (4,938) (1,570) 1,067 - -
Present value of unfunded

obligations - - - - 4,523 3,359
Unrecognized net actuarial

gains / (losses) 9,613 4,938 1,570 (1,067) (383) (383)

Net liability at the end of the year - - - - 4,140 2,976

34.2 Movement in the defined
benefit obligations

Obligation as at January 1 68,644 53,267 22,888 19,600 3,359 2,429
Current service cost 6,841 5,525 3,270 2,223 680 413

Interest cost 9,704 5,603 3,300 2,049 481 246
Actuarial losses / (gains) - 4,754 - 4,280 3 271

Benefits paid (6,195) (505) (3,410) (5,264) - -
Obligation as at December 31 78,994 68,644 26,048 22,888 4,523 3,359

34.3 Movement in the fair value

of plan assets

Fair value as at January 1 73,582 62,237 21,821 21,742 - -

Expected return on plan assets 10,350 6,449 3,160 2,253 - -

Actuarial gains - 905 - 1,071 - -

Employer contributions 6,195 4,496 3,410 2,019 - -

Benefits paid (1,520) (505) (773) (5,264) - -

Fair value as at December 31 88,607 73,582 27,618 21,821 - -

34.4 The amounts recognized in

the profit and loss
account are as follows:

Current service cost 6,841 5,525 3,270 2,223 680 413

Interest cost 9,704 5,603 3,300 2,049 481 246

Expected return on plan assets (10,350) (6,449) (3,160) (2,253) - -

Recognition of actuarial
(gains) / losses - (183) - - 3 -

Expense 6,195 4,496 3,410 2,019 1,164 659

34.5 Actual return on plan assets (3,867) 2,461 (222) 827 - -

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund  Additional Death Gratuity
Scheme
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34.6 Expected future costs for the year ending December 31, 2010:

2009 2008 2009 2008

Discount rate 14% 14% 14% 14%
Expected rate of return per annum

on plan assets 14% 14% 14% 14%
Expected rate of increase per annum

in future salaries 13% 13% 13% 13%

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

34.8 Plan assets comprise of following:

2009 2008 2008

Equity 36,329 25,754 11,323 14,402
Debt 47,848 25,754 13,809 6,110
Others 4,430 22,074 2,486 1,309

88,607 73,582 27,618 21,821

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

Rupees

34.9 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the

assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based

on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.

34.7 Principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:

Rupees

- Pension Fund 6,266
- Gratuity Fund 3,444
- Additional Death Gratuity Scheme 1,254

10,964

2009
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Pension Fund

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 78,994 68,644 53,267 44,310 34,760

Fair value of plan assets (88,607) (73,582) (62,237) (47,516) (34,861)

(Surplus) / Deficit (9,613) (4,938) (8,970) (3,206) (101)

Gratuity Fund

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 26,048 22,888 19,600 16,145 12,784

Fair value of plan assets (27,618) (21,821) (21,742) (15,665) (12,870)

(Surplus) / Deficit (1,570) 1,067 (2,142) 480 (86)

Rupees

34.10 Historical information of staff retirement benefits:

34.11 During the year, Rs. 22,620 (2008: Rs. 8,658) has been recognized in the profit and loss account in respect

of defined contribution provident fund.

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration to Chief Executive and

executives are as follows:

Chief Executives Chief Executives
Executive Executive

Managerial remuneration 12,538 241,176 11,076 184,954

Retirement benefit funds 1,355 9,159 1,579 10,955

Bonus paid - - 5,366 40,999

Employee share option scheme 986 2,850 1,229 4,218

Other benefits 1,425 21,392 1,318 17,565

Total 16,304 274,577 20,568 258,691

Number of persons 1 141 1 121

2009 2008

Rupees

35.1 The Company also provides household items and vehicles for the use of Chief Executive and

certain executives.
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36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Loss) / Profit before taxation (249,144) 458,528

Adjustments for non cash charges
 and other items:

Provision for staff retirement and
other service benefits 10,769 14,898

Provision against custom duty refundable - 18,043
   Depreciation 509,198 185,460

Amortization 3,701 749
Amortization of deferred employee share

compensation expense 3,836 5,477
Provision for slow moving stores and spares 3,867 -
Income on short term investments and bank deposits (61,878) (46,310)
Gain realized on sale of short term investments (35,168) (69,879)
Provision against SED 15,565 91,616
Finance costs 596,264 33,529
Interest accrued on Workers' Profits

 Participation Fund 4,034 -
Profit on disposal of operating assets (1,619) (349)

1,048,569 233,234
Working capital changes - note 36.1 690,993 (25,978)

1,490,418 665,784

36.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

   Stores and spares (69,477) (31,433)
   Stock-in-trade (445,900) (239,863)
   Trade debts (266,728) 108,958

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables (net) (10,230) (97,106)

(792,335) (259,444)

Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 1,483,328 233,466

690,993 (25,978)

2008

Rupees

2009
(Restated)
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2008
Rupees

2009

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

38.1 Financial assets as per balance sheet

Loans and receivables
Long term loans and advances 47,475 107,785
Trade debts - considered good 336,242 69,514
Loans, advances, deposits, and other receivables 94,142 94,071
Cash and bank balances 190,064 97,273

667,923 368,643

38.2 Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost

Long term borrowings 11,135,163 7,973,072
Derivative financial instruments 19,935 60,154
Retention money against project payments - 553,445
Retirement and other service benefit obligations 38,312 38,500
Current portion of long term borrowings 1,016,393 130,000
Trade and other payables 2,570,436 1,358,580
Accrued interest/mark-up 202,207 167,268
Short term borrowings 394,241 842,568

15,376,687 11,123,587

38.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable

willing parties in an arms length transaction.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate

their fair values.

37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances - note 12 190,064 97,273
Short term borrowings - note 22 (394,241) (842,568)

(204,177) (745,295)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

39.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk (currency risk, interest

rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management program focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects on the

Company’s financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain

risk factors. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance department under guidance of the

 Company’s Board of Directors.

a) Market risk

i) Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will

fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange

risk arising from currency exposures primarily with respect to US Dollars. The risk arises from outstanding

payments for imports, recognized assets and liabilities in foreign currency and future commercial

transactions. In the current economic environment, the Company is significantly exposed to currency

risk because of the expected volatility in exchange rates. The Company used to manage the currency

risk through forward exchange contracts, however, since last year is unable to hedge its foreign

exchange risk exposure due to restriction on forward-covers imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Currently, the Company manages the foreign currency risk through close monitoring of currency market.

At December 31, 2009 the financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange risk amount

to Rs. 84,095 (2008: Rs. 88,276) and Rs. 7,007,487 (2008: Rs. 3,117,025) respectively.

At December 31, 2009, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the US

Dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss/profit for the year would have been higher/lower

 by Rs. 225,010 (2008: Rs. 98,434), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation

of US Dollar-denominated liabilities. However, this change in profitability would have been offset by

a corresponding change in margins as bulk of revenues is linked with movements in exchange rates.

ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate

risk arising from long and short term borrowings. Borrowing at variable rates exposes the Company

to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas, borrowing at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value

interest rate risk.

To manage its cash flow interest rate risk, the Company has entered into floating to fixed rate interest

swaps on its foreign currency borrowings. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of

converting floating rates to fixed rates. Under the interest rate swap agreement, the Company has

agreed with the banks to exchange, at half yearly intervals, the difference between fixed contracted

rates and the floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.
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At December 31, 2009, if interest rate on Company’s borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all

other variables held constant, post tax loss/profit for the year would have been higher/lower by Rs.

34,759 (2008: Rs. 1,453) mainly as a result of higher/lower interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

iii) Other price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices (other then those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),

 whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its

issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not

exposed to equity securities price risk as currently the Company has no investments in listed securities.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to discharge their

obligations. 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, advances,

deposits and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount

of financial assets.

The Company is not materially exposed to credit risk as unsecured credit is provided to selected parties

with no history of default. Moreover, major part of trade debts are secured by bank guarantees and

letters of credit from customers. Further, credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter

parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance

of such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are

neither past due nor impaired are as follows:

2008
Rupees

2009

Long term loan and advances 47,475 107,785
Trade debts - considered good 336,242 69,514
Loan, advances, deposits and other receivables 94,142 94,071
Cash and bank balances 190,064 97,273

667,923 368,643
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The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no defaults

in recent history. The credit quality of the Company’s liquid funds can be assessed with reference to external

credit ratings of banks as follows:

Bank
Short term Long term

Allied Bank Limited AA A1+
Askari Commercial Bank Limited AA A1+
Bank AlFalah Limited AA A1+
Bank AlHabib AA A1+
Barclays Bank A1+ AA+
Citibank A1+ AA+
Deutsche Bank A2 A
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited AA A1+
Faysal Bank Limited AA A1+
Habib Bank Limited AA+ A1+
HSBC Bank Middle East Limited A1+ AA
MCB Bank Limited AA+ A1+
Meezan Bank Limited A+ A1
National Bank of Pakistan AA+ A1+
NIB Bank Limited AA- A1+
Samba Bank Limited A A
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) AAA A1+
United Bank Limited AA+ A1+

Rating

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Company’s liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash
and marketable securities, the availability of funds through an adequate amount of credit facilities and through
its ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company aims at

 maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses how management monitors net liquidity based on details of the remaining
contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings 1,016,393 11,135,163 12,151,556 130,000 7,973,072 8,103,072
Derivative financial instruments - 19,935 19,935 - 60,154 60,154
Retention money against project

payments 801,718 - 801,718 239,033 553,445 792,478
Retirement and other service

benefit obligations - 38,312 38,312 - 38,500 38,500
Trade and other payables 1,768,718 - 1,768,718 1,119,547 - 1,119,547
Accrued interest / mark-up 202,207 - 202,207 167,268 - 167,268
Short term borrowings 394,241 - 394,241 842,568 - 842,568

4,183,277 11,193,410 15,376,687 2,498,416 8,625,171 11,123,587

2009 2008

Rupees

Maturity upto
 one year

Total TotalMaturity after
 one year

Maturity upto
 one year

Maturity after
 one year

Rating agency

PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
S & P
S & P
S & P
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
S & P
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
S & P
PACRA
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Net settled derivatives comprise interest rate swaps used by the Company to manage the Company’s

interest rate profile. The Company’s net settled derivative financial instruments with a negative fair

value have been included at their fair value of Rs. 19,935 (2008: Rs. 60,154) in the maturity analysis

because the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

These contracts are managed on a net-fair value basis as well as maturity date.

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going

concern and to provide expected returns to its shareholders by maintaining optimum capital structure to 

minimize the cost of capital.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new equity, manage dividend payouts

to its shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratio at certain levels. This ratio is calculated as

long term borrowings, as disclosed in note 15, divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’

as shown in the balance sheet plus long term borrowings.

The gearing ratio at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

41. SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, on August 1, 2009, the Company declared commercial production of Caustic soda and

also commenced supply of surplus power to KESC. Therefore, based on the internal management reporting

structure, the Company is organized into three business segments based on the products produced and

sold as follows:

  - Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals;

  - Caustic soda and allied chemicals; and

  - Power supplies.

2008
Rupees

2009

Long term borrowings - note 15 11,135,163 7,973,072

Total equity 6,359,673 6,565,865

Total capital 17,494,836 14,538,937

Gearing ratio 0.636 0.548
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Management monitors the operating results of abovementioned segments separately for the purpose of

making decisions about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Segment performance

is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in table below, is

measured differently from profit or loss in the financial statements. Segment results and assets include

items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Finance cost, other operating income and expenses, and taxation are managed at Company level. Further,

unallocated assets include long term investment, long term loan and advances, loans, advances, prepayments

and other receivables, taxes recoverable, deferred employee share compensation expense, short term

investments, and cash and bank balances.

The following table presents the profit or loss and total assets for the operating segments of the Company:

Poly Vinyl Caustic Power

Chloride (PVC) soda and supply Total

and allied allied

chemicals chemicals

Revenue 10,495,567 890,271 185,279 11,571,117

Profit or loss before

unallocated expenses 460,255 154,552 69,141 683,948

Unallocated expenses

Administrative expenses (205,389)

Other operating expenses (231,701)

Other operating income 100,262

Finance costs (596,264)

Taxation 17,355

Loss after taxation (231,789)

Total segment assets 13,190,511 6,368,873 132,333 19,691,717

Unallocated assets 2,864,318

Total assets as per the balance sheet 22,556,035

2009
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42. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

42.1 Transactions with related parties other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements are as follows:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Holding Company

- Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited Purchase of services
Sale of goods
Sale of services
Sale of steam and electricity
Use of operating assets
Pension fund contribution
Provident fund contribution
Medical contribution
Gratuity fund contribution

Subsidiary Company

- Engro Polymer Trading (Pvt) Purchase of goods
Limited Sale of goods

Sale of services

Associated Company

- Mitsubishi Corporation Purchase of goods
Sale of goods

Related parties by virtue of

common directorship

- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited Purchase of services
Sale of services

- Engro PowerGen Limited Sale of services

- Engro Foods Limited Sale of goods

- Central Insurance Company Limited Insurance

- ICI Pakistan Limited Directors fee
Purchase of goods

- IGI Pakistan Limited Purchase of services

- Dawood Hercules Chemicals Ltd. Sales of services
Purchase of services
Reimbursement

- Indus Valley School of Art and Purchase of services
Architecture

- Lahore University of Management Purchase of services
Sciences

- Management Association of Purchase of services and Annual subscription
Pakistan

- Port Qasim Authority Purchase of services
Purchase of goods

- Overseas Investors Chambers of Advertisement (Purchase of services)
Commerce & Industry Annual Subscription

Training Course (Purchase of services)

2008
Rupees

2009

17,309 9,824
3,195 -
3,313 2,807

51,736 28,859
4,139 2,685
4,119 2,208
3,036 3,322

88 74
252 -

- 1,090
1,330,435 -

353 23

7,941,021 6,191,979
106,941 78,648

1,564,559 142,293
1,614 1,219

424 -

301 -

4,701 458

10 15
13,016 4,102

2,304 -

- 37
5,745 -

- 71

- 100

156 248

24 120

300 11,095
5,138 -

- 27
- 165
- 5
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Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Related parties by virtue of

common directorship

- Pakistan Institute of Corporate Purchase of services 80 -
Governance

- Inbox Business Technologies Purchase of goods - 785

(Pvt) Ltd. Setup of software 150 150

- Avanceon Limited Purchase of goods 2,470 -

Purchase of services 575 409

- Actis Assets Ltd. Directors fee - 5

- UBL Funds Investments in liquidity funds 100,000 -

Directors fee 175 -

Key management personnel Managerial remuneration 52,181 47,046

Retirement benefit funds 3,963 4,177

Bonus - 18,052

Employee share option scheme 2,542 2,577

Other benefits 4,381 4,155

2008
Rupees

2009

42.2 Sales, purchases and other transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and

conditions.

42.3 The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2009 are disclosed in the respective

notes.

43. PRODUCTION CAPACITY

43.1 Commencement of commercial production of the new PVC plant was from January 1, 2009 and that of

Chlor-alkali plant was from August 1, 2009.

2009 2008 2009 2008

PVC resin 150,000 100,000 115,620 98,660

Caustic soda 106,000 - 38,739 - Note - 43.1

Designed Actual
Production Remarks

Metric tons

 Annual Capacity

Production planned as
per market demand

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

For better presentation, the following major reclassification in the corresponding figures has been made:

Head of account of the
financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2009

Net revenue - note 25

Head of account of the
financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2008

Other operating income - note 30

Description

Supply of electricity

Rupees

20,843

The effect of other reclassifications is not material.

45. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on January 21, 2010 by the Board of Directors of

the Company.

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of Engro

Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the holding company) and its subsidiary company, Engro Polymer Trading (Private)

Limited as at December 31, 2009 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement

of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows

together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed separate opinions

on the financial statements of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited and Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the holding company’s management. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included

such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Engro Polymer and

Chemicals Limited and its subsidiary company, Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited, as at December 31, 2009

and the results of their operations, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended.

As stated in note 2.1.4 (a) to the financial statements, the Company has changed its accounting policies on initial

application of standards, amendments or interpretations to existing standards, with which we concur.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: January 27, 2010

Engagement Partner: Sohail Hassan

Lahore Office: 505-509, 5th Floor, Alfalah Building, P.O.Box 39, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore-54000, Pakistan. Tel: (92-42) 36285078-85 Fax: (92-42) 36285088
Islamabad Office: PIA Building, 3rd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Haq Road, P.O. Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan. Tel: (92-51) 2273457-60 Fax: (92-51) 2277924
Kabul Office: House No. 4, Street No. 3, District 6, Road Karte-3, Kabul, Afghanistan. Tel: (93-799) 315320-203424

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
State Life Building No.1-C
I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716
Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Telephone: (021) 32426682-6 / 32426711-5
Facsimile: (021) 32415007 / 32427938
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ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Long term loans and advances

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 
Stock-in-trade 
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 
Taxes recoverable 
Deferred employee share compensation expense
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share Capital and Reserves

Share capital 
Share premium 
Employee share compensation reserve 
Hedging reserve
Unappropriated profit 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Long term borrowings
Derivative financial instruments 
Retention money against project payments  
Deferred income tax liabilities
Retirement and other service benefit obligations 

Current Liabilities 

Current portion of long term borrowings 
Trade and other payables
Accrued interest / mark-up
Short term borrowings
Provisions 

Contingencies and Commitments

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 19,360,686
 11,816
 47,475

 19,419,977

 192,762
 1,605,438

 439,905
 410,881
 451,603

 -
 61,398

 217,531
 3,379,518

 22,799,495

 5,203,677
 975,438

 9,313
 (12,958)
 220,173

 6,395,643

11,135,163
 19,935

 -
 321,520

 38,312
 11,514,930

 1,016,393
 3,002,022

 205,772
 594,241

 70,494
 4,888,922

 22,799,495

 16,134,766
 9,262

 107,785
 16,251,813

 127,152
 1,159,473

 69,514
 300,959
 220,901

 4,381
 43,648
 99,385

 2,025,413

 18,277,226

 5,203,677
 975,438

 9,858
 (39,100)
 413,869

 6,563,742

7,973,072
 60,154

 553,445
 382,574

 38,500
 9,007,745

 130,000
 1,510,974

 167,268
 842,568

 54,929
 2,705,739

18,277,226

4
5
6

7
8
9

10

14
11
12

13

14

15
16
17
18
19

15
20
21
22
23

24

(Amounts in thousand)

Note      2009 2008
                   Rupees

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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7,868,380

69
 7,868,449

 (6,735,658)

 1,132,791

(311,640)

 (163,182)

 (293,787)

124,945

 489,127

 (33,531)

 455,596

(105,243)

 350,353

0.68

Net revenue

Export rebate 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit

Distribution and marketing expenses 

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses 

Other operating income

Operating profit 

Finance costs 

(Loss) / Profit before taxation 

Taxation 

(Loss) / Profit for the year 

(Loss) / Earnings per share - basic and diluted 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

(Amounts in thousand except for (loss) / earnings per share)
Note

 11,632,108

667
11,632,775

(10,418,592)

1,214,183

 (483,814)

   (205,742)

 (232,011)

 116,422

409,038

 (606,175)

 (197,137)

 3,441

 (193,696)

(0.37)

     
                   Rupees

2008
(Restated)

2009

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Loss) / Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income:  

Hedging reserve

(Loss) / Gain arising during the year 

Less:
     - Reclassification adjustments for 
   (gains) / losses included in profit and loss

     - Adjustments for amounts transferred to 
              initial carrying amount of hedged items

Income tax relating to hedging reserve

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 (193,696)

 (478)

22,557

 18,140

(14,077)

26,142

(167,554)

(Amounts in thousand)

     2009 2008
                   Rupees

 350,353

 257,573

(118,649)

(199,078)

21,054

(39,100)

311,253

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Finance costs paid

Long term loans and advances

Retirement benefits paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of

   - property, plant and equipment

   - intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Retention money from Project payments

Purchases of short term investments

Proceeds from sale of short term investments

Income on short term investments and bank deposits

Net cash utilized in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayments of long term borrowings

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

36

37

 1,542,650

 (563,637)

 60,310

 (10,957)

 (302,392)

 725,974

(3,739,678)

 (6,255)

 6,179

 (553,445)

 (156,627)

 178,034

 63,807

(4,207,985)

4,178,484

 (130,000)

 -

-

4,048,484

566,473

(743,183)

 (176,710)

 660,146

 (354,530)

 (10,814)

 -

 (183,783)

 111,019

(11,150,853)

 (7,180)

 3,971

 452,485

 (46,000)

 2,914,504

 117,410

 (7,715,663)

6,637,643

 -

 229,128

 (252,896)

 6,613,875

(990,769)

 247,586

(743,183)

(Amounts in thousand)

Note      2009 2008
                   Rupees

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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Balance as at January 1, 2008

Total comprehensive income for the year

Final dividend for the year ended
   December 31, 2007 - Re. 0.54 per share

Share options granted during
   the year - note 14

Share capital issued

Share issuance cost, net

Balance as at December 31, 2008

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Unvested share options lapsed
   during the year - note 14.2.1

Balance as at December 31, 2009

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 4,436,000

 -

-

-

 767,677

 -

5,203,677

-

-

 5,203,677

425,216

 -

-

-

614,141

 (63,919)

975,438

-

-

975,438

 -

 -

-

9,858

 -

 -

9,858

-

(545)

9,313

 -

 (39,100)

-

-

 -

 -

(39,100)

26,142

-

(12,958)

 316,412

 350,353

(252,896)

-

 -

 -

413,869

(193,696)

-

220,173

5,177,628

 311,253

(252,896)

9,858

1,381,818

 (63,919)

6,563,742

(167,554)

(545)

6,395,643

Share
capital

Share
premium

Employee
share

compensation
reserve

Hedging
reserve

Unappropriated
profit

Total

(Amounts in thousand)

 
                   Rupees

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 The Group consists of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company) and it’s wholly owned
subsidiary company, Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited.

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan in 1997 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company
was listed on Karachi Stock Exchange in 2008 and on Islamabad and Lahore Stock Exchanges during
the current year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited (ECPL) (renamed as Engro Corporation
Limited with effect from January 1, 2010). The address of its registered office is 1st floor, Bahria Complex I,
M. T. Khan Road, Karachi. The Company's principal activity is to manufacture, market and sell Poly Vinyl
Chloride (PVC), PVC compounds, Caustic soda and other related chemicals.

1.2 In 2006, the Company commenced work on its expansion and backward integration project comprising
setting up of a new PVC plant, Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC), Chlor-alkali, Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM)
and Power plants (the Project). The new PVC plant commenced commercial production on January 1,
2009. Further, on August 1, 2009, the Company commenced commercial operations of EDC, Chlor-alkali
and Power plants (Gas turbines). The VCM plant is still in the test production phase. These plants have
been set up adjacent to the Company's existing PVC facilities in the Port Qasim Industrial Area. Furthermore,
during the year, the Company has also commenced supply of surplus power generated from Power plants
to Karachi Electric Supply Company (KESC), under an agreement.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
remeasurement of certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value and recognition of certain staff retirement and other service benefits at present value.

2.1.2 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance), directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) and the approved financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved financial
reporting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the provisions of the Ordinance. Wherever,
the requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the SECP differ with the requirements of these
standards, the requirements of the Ordinance or the requirements of the said directives have been followed.

2.1.3. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the above requirements requires the use of
 certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving high degree of judgment or complexity,

 or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
note 3.
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2.1.4 Initial application of a Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation to an existing Standard

a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective in 2009 and relevant

- IAS 1 (Revised), 'Presentation of financial statements' (effective from January 1, 2009). The

revised standard prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, 'non-

owner changes in equity') in the statement of changes in equity, requiring 'non-owner changes in

equity' to be presented separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of comprehensive

income. Entities can choose to present one statement of comprehensive income or two separate

statements (the profit and loss account and statement of comprehensive income).

The Company has elected to present two statements; a profit and loss account and a statement

of comprehensive income. As the change impacts only the presentation of financial statements

there is no impact on earnings per share.

- IAS 23 (Amendment), 'Borrowing costs' (effective from January 1, 2009). The amendment requires

an entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The option of immediately expensing

those borrowing costs has been removed. The Company’s current accounting policy is in compliance

with this amendment, and therefore has no effect on the Company’s financial statements.

- IAS 28 (Amendment), 'Investments in associates' (and consequential amendments to IAS 32,

'Financial Instruments: Presentation' and IFRS 7, 'Financial instruments: Disclosures') (effective

from January 1, 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB's annual improvements project published

in May 2008. The amendment requires that an investment in associate including subsidiaries is

treated as a single asset for the purposes of impairment testing and any impairment loss is not

allocated to specific assets included within the investment, for example, goodwill. Reversals of

impairment are recorded as an adjustment to the investment balance to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the associate increases. This amendment has no impact on

the Company's financial statements as currently there is no indication of impairment in Company's

investment in subsidiary.

- IAS 39 (Amendment), 'Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement' (effective from January

1, 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB's annual improvements project published in May 2008.

- This amendment clarifies that it is possible for there to be movements into and out of the fair value

through profit or loss category where a derivative commences or ceases to qualify as a hedging

instrument in cash flow or net investment hedge.

- The definition of financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss as it relates

to items that are held for trading is also amended. This clarifies that a financial asset or liability

that is part of a portfolio of financial instruments managed together with evidence of an actual

recent pattern of short-term profit-taking is included in such a portfolio on initial recognition.
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- When re-measuring the carrying amount of a debt instrument on cessation of fair value hedge

accounting, the amendment clarifies that a revised effective interest rate (calculated at the date

fair value hedge accounting ceases) are used.

This amendment has no material impact on the Company's financial statements.

- IFRS 2 (Amendment), 'Share-based payment' (effective from January 1, 2009). The amendment deals

with vesting conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions are service conditions and

performance conditions only. Other features of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions. As

such these features would need to be included in the grant date fair value for transactions with

employees and others providing similar services, that is, these features would not impact the number

of awards expected to vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant date. All cancellations, whether

by the entity or by other parties, would have the same accounting treatment. The Company’s current

accounting policy for employees’ shares options is consistent with this amendment.

- The SECP vide S.R.O. 411 (1) / 2008 dated April 28, 2008 notified the adoption of IFRS 7 'Financial

Instruments: Disclosures'. IFRS 7 is mandatory for Company's accounting periods beginning on or

after the date of notification i.e. April 28, 2008. IFRS 7 has superseded IAS 30 and disclosure

requirements of IAS 32. The application of IFRS 7 has only resulted in additional disclosures in the

Company's financial statements.

- IFRS 8 'Operating Segments' (effective from January 1, 2009). IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14, 'Segment

reporting'. The new standard requires segment information to be presented on the same basis as that

used for internal reporting purposes, and introduces detailed disclosures regarding the reportable

segments and products. Application of IFRS 8 has resulted in additional disclosures in the Company's

financial statements.

b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective in 2009 but not

relevant

The other new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods

beginning on or after January 1, 2009 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect

on the Company's financial reporting and operations.

c) Interpretation to existing standards that has been early adopted by the Company

- IFRIC 4, 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease' was adopted by SECP and was

applicable for all periods beginning on or after January 1, 2006. However, SECP vide Circular No.

D(CS)/34/2009 dated June 22, 2009 deferred the implementation of IFRIC 4 till June 30, 2010. The

    Company has early adopted the Interpretation, which has only resulted in additional disclosures in

respect of certain arrangements of the Company being classified as operating leases

(note 26.3).
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d) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Company

- IAS 1 (Amendment), 'Presentation of financial statements' (effective from January 1, 2010). The
amendment is part of the IASB's annual improvements project published in April 2009. The amendment
provides clarification that the potential settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is not relevant to
its classification as current or non current. By amending the definition of current liability, the amendment
permits a liability to be classified as non-current (provided that the entity has an unconditional right
to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for at least 12 months after the accounting
period) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required by the counterparty to settle in shares
at any time. The Company will apply IAS 1 (Amendment) from July 1, 2010. It is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company's financial statements, on its initial application.

- IAS 39 (Amendment), 'Cash flow hedge accounting', (effective from July 1, 2010). This amendment
provides clarification when to recognize gains or losses on hedging instruments as a reclassification
adjustment in a cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction that results subsequently in the recognition
of a financial instrument. The amendment clarifies that gains or losses should be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the period in which the hedged forecast cash flow affects profit or loss. The
Company will apply IAS 39 (Amendment) from July 1, 2010. It is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company's financial statements, on its initial application.

- IFRS 8 (Amendment), 'Disclosure of information about segment assets' (effective from January 1,
2010). This amendment clarifies that an entity is required to disclose a measure of segment assets
only if that measure is regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker. The new guidance is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

- IAS 39 (Amendment), 'Treating loan pre-payment penalties as closely related derivatives' (effective
from January 1, 2010). This amendment clarifies pre-payment options, the exercise price of which
compensates the lender for loss of interest by reducing the economic loss from re-investment risk,
should be considered closely related to the host debt contract. The Company will apply IAS 39
(Amendment) from January 1, 2010.

There are a number of other minor amendments and interpretations to other published standards that are
not yet effective, and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore have not been presented here.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except Capital work-in-
progress. Cost in relation to fixed assets signifies historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Capital work-in-progress is stated at historical
cost less impairment, if any.
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Depreciation on assets is charged to income using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives at rates given in note 4.1. Depreciation on additions is

charged from the month in which the asset is put to use and no depreciation is charged in the month of

disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged

to income during the year in which these are incurred.

Assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense in the period of

disposal or retirement.

2.3 Intangible assets - Computer software

Costs associated with developing and maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an

expense as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic

benefits exceeding one year, are recognized as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost

of software and related overhead cost.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original

specification and useful life is recognized as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the

software.

Computer software cost treated as intangible assets are amortized from the date the software is put to

use on straight-line basis over a period of 5 to 10 years. The carrying amount of the intangible assets is

reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying

amount exceeds its recoverable amount in income. Reversal of impairment losses are also recognized

in income.

2.4 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost net of provision for impairment, if any. This investment is

classified as long term investments.
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2.5 Financial instruments

2.5.1 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and receivables, held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose

for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

as sets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial

asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.

Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated

as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities

greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.

The Company's loans and receivables comprise 'trade debts and other receivables' and 'cash and

cash equivalents' in the balance sheet (note 2.8 and 2.9).

(c) Held to maturity financial assets

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments and fixed maturity with a positive intention to hold to maturity.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category

or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless

management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date - the date on

which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized

at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit

or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair

value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are

derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have

been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

subsequently carried at fair value.
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Loans and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are carried at amortized cost using

the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss' category are presented in the profit or loss account within 'other operating

income/expenses' in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss is recognized in the profit and loss account as part of other income

when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value

adjustments recognized in other comprehensive income are included in the profit or loss account

as 'gains and losses from investment securities'. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated

using the effective interest method is recognized in the profit and loss account as part of other

income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the profit and loss

account as part of other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial

asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using

valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other

instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing

models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific

inputs.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial

asset or a Group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for

sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an

indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,

the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,

less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from

equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and loss

account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment testing

of trade receivables is described in note 2.8.

2.5.2 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange

or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,

and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit and loss account.
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2.5.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if

the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle

on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.6 Stores and spares

These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value

plus other charges paid thereon till the balance sheet date. Provision is made for slow moving items, as

per policy and is recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw materials represent

the weighted average cost and in relation to finished goods and work-in-progress represents weighted average

cost comprising direct materials, labour and related manufacturing overheads.

Cost of stock-in-transit represents the invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon till the balance

sheet date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost of

completion and costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sales. Provision is made for slow

moving stocks where considered necessary.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for

impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect

all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is charged to

income. Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign

currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement include cash in hand and in transit, balance with

banks, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less and short term finances. Short term finances on the balance sheet are shown as

part of current liabilities.
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2.10 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs, if any,

directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are recognized in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.

2.11 Employees' Share Option Scheme

The grant date fair value of equity settled share based payments to employees is initially recognized in

the balance sheet as deferred share employee compensation expense with a consequent credit to equity

as employee share compensation reserve.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share based payments is recognized as

an employee compensation expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period.

When an unvested option lapses by virtue of an employee not conforming to the vesting conditions after

recognition of an employee compensation expense in profit or loss, employee compensation expense in

profit or loss is reversed equal to the amortized portion with a corresponding effect to deferred employee

compensation reserve in the balance sheet.

When a vested option lapses on expiry of the exercise period, employee compensation expense already

recognized in the profit or loss is reversed with a corresponding reduction to deferred employee compensation

reserve in the balance sheet.

When the options are exercised, deferred employee compensation reserve relating to these options is

transferred to share capital and share premium account. An amount equivalent to the face value of related

shares is transferred to share capital, and any amount over and above the share capital is transferred to

share premium account.

2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / contractual right

to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

2.13 Retirement and other service benefit obligation

2.13.1 Pension Scheme

The Company operates an approved defined benefit pension scheme for its management employees.

The scheme is funded and provides for pension based on the employees' last drawn salary. Pensions

are payable, after retirement or on optional retirement, for life and thereafter to surviving spouses and

dependent children.
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2.13.2 Gratuity Scheme

The Company operates an approved funded defined benefit gratuity scheme for its management

employees.The scheme provides gratuity based on the employees' last drawn salary. Gratuity is

payable on retirement, separation or death to ex-employees, or their spouses thereafter.

Contributions are made annually to these funds on the basis of the actuarial valuations and in line with

the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

2.13.3 Additional Death Gratuity Scheme

The Company also operates an approved death gratuity scheme for its permanent employees. The

scheme is unfunded and provides for additional death gratuity which is payable on death of employee

to surviving spouses and dependent children.

Actuarial valuation of these schemes is carried out at least once in every three years. The most recent

actuarial valuation was carried out as of December 31, 2008 using the 'Projected Unit Credit Meth

The amount recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligations

as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized past service costs, if any, as

reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous year which exceeds 10%

of the greater of the present value of the Company's defined benefit obligations and the fair value of

plan assets are amortized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees.

2.13.4 Provident fund

The Company operates a defined contribution provident fund for its permanent management employees.

Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of

10% of basic salary. Annual contribution by the Company is charged to income.

2.13.5 Compensated absences

Accrual is made for employees compensated absences on the basis of accumulated leaves and the last

drawn pay.

2.13.6 Other benefits

Provision is made under a service incentive plan for certain category of experienced employees to continue
in the Company's employment. The provision is made on the basis of management's estimates of incentives
to be paid to employees on fulfilment of criteria given in the incentive plan.

2.14 Trade and other payables

These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.
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2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed

at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

2.16 Taxation

2.16.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with

the prevailing law for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates. The charge for current tax also includes

tax credits and adjustments, where considered necessary, for prior years determined during the year or

otherwise considered necessary for such years.

2.16.2 Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax

liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are

recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or

the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account.

2.17 Foreign currency transactions and translation

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in income.

2.18 Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends

on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being

hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable

forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).
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The overall risk management strategy includes reasons for undertaking hedge transactions and entering

into derivatives. The objectives of this strategy are to:

   - minimize foreign currency exposure's impact on the Company's financial performance; and

   - protect the Company's cash flow from adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded

in the profit and loss account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability

that are attributable to the hedged risk.

(b) Cash flow hedge

On an ongoing basis, the Company assesses whether each derivative continues to be highly effective in

offsetting changes in the cash flows of hedged items. If and when a derivative is no longer expected to

be highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash

flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective

portion is recognized immediately in the profit and loss account.

Amounts accumulated in comprehensive income are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the

periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss account i.e. when the transaction occurs. The gain or

loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognized

in the profit and loss account or the cost of the related asset for which the borrowing is being utilized.

However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset

(for e.g. inventory or fixed assets) the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from

equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately

recognized in cost of goods sold in case of inventory or in depreciation in case of fixed assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge

accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized

when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in the profit and loss account or the cost of the

related non-financial asset (for e.g. inventory or fixed assets) as applicable. When a forecast transaction

is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately

transferred to the profit and loss account.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 16.

Movements on the hedging reserve are shown in statement of comprehensive income. The full fair value

of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of hedged

item is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged

item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.
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2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable, and is recognized on the following basis:

- sales are recognized when the product is dispatched to customers;

- revenue from the supply of electricity is recorded based upon the output delivered;

- dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established; and

- return on deposits is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

2.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such

costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which

such costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs includes exchange differences

arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing

costs.

2.21 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting.

2.22 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which

these are approved.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are as follows:

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in
the calculation of depreciation. Further where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is
made for possible impairment on an annual basis.

3.2 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

In making an estimate of future cash flows from the Company's financial assets including investment in
subsidiaries, the management considers future dividend stream and an estimate of the terminal value of
these investments.
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3.3 Derivative hedging financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges

The Company reviews the changes in fair values of the derivative hedging financial instruments at each

reporting date based on the valuations received from the contracting banks. These valuations represent

estimated fluctuations in the relevant currencies / interest rates over the reporting period and other relevant

variables signifying currency and interest rate risks.

3.4 Stock-in-trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective

carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated

expenditures to make the sales.

3.5 Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes payable by the Company, the management looks at the applicable

law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

3.6 Fair value of employee share options

The management has determined the fair value of options issued under the Employee Share Option

Scheme at the grant date using the Black Scholes pricing model. The fair value of these options and the

underlying assumptions are disclosed in note 14.

3.7 Provision for retirement and other service benefits obligations

The present value of these obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on actuarial

basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount

of these obligations. The present values of these obligations and the underlying assumptions are disclosed

in notes 34.2 and 34.7 respectively. 

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
     

Operating assets (note 4.1) 14,112,080 1,987,643

Capital work in progress (note 4.4)  5,248,606 14,147,123

19,360,686 16,134,766

2008
Rupees

2009
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4.1 Operating assets

 Water  VCM Ethylene  Gas

As at January 1, 2008

Cost 190,779 227,102 2,732,433 119,280 26,122 - 1,691 77,604 66,242 3,441,253

(9,480) (46,686) (1,111,931) (48,350) (10,611) - (689) (47,004) (33,449) (1,308,200)

181,299 180,416 1,620,502 70,930 15,511 - 1,002 30,600 32,793 2,133,053

Year ended December 31, 2008

Opening net book value 181,299 180,416 1,620,502 70,930 15,511 - 1,002 30,600 32,793 2,133,053

3,348 - - - - - - 19,940 20,384 43,672

- Cost - - - - - - - (3,353) (6,583) (9,936)

- Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 2,749 3,565 6,314

Net book value - - - - - - - (604) (3,018) (3,622)

- Cost - - (5,889) - - - - - 5,889 -

- Accumulated depreciation - - 2,984 - - - - - (2,984) -

Net book value - - (2,905) - - - - - 2,905 -

(3,870) (5,827) (145,761) (5,964) (1,306) - (85) (9,985) (12,662) (185,460)

180,777 174,589 1,471,836 64,966 14,205 - 917 39,951 40,402 1,987,643

As at January 1, 2009

Cost 194,127 227,102 2,726,544 119,280 26,122 - 1,691 94,191 85,932 3,474,989

(13,350) (52,513) (1,254,708) (54,314) (11,917) - (774) (54,240) (45,530) (1,487,346)

180,777 174,589 1,471,836 64,966 14,205 - 917 39,951 40,402 1,987,643

Year ended December 31, 2009

Opening net book value 180,777 174,589 1,471,836 64,966 14,205 - 917 39,951 40,402 1,987,643

- 168,221 12,076,638 275,128 - 50,023 32,158 ` 16,820 29,811 12,648,799

- Cost - - - - - - - (133) (13,458) (13,591)

- Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 74 8,957 9,031

Net book value - - - - - - - (59) (4,501) (4,560)

(3,934) (10,033) (466,383) (11,696) (1,306) (1,042) (754) (12,920) (11,734) (519,802)

176,843 332,777 13,082,091 328,398 12,899 48,981 32,321 43,792 53,978 14,112,080

As at December 31, 2009

194,127 395,323 14,803,182 394,408 26,122 50,023 33,849 110,878 102,285 16,110,197

(17,284) (62,546) (1,721,091) (66,010) (13,223) (1,042) (1,528) (67,086) (48,307) (1,998,117)

176,843 332,777 13,082,091 328,398 12,899 48,981 32,321 43,792 53,978 14,112,080

Annual Rate of

Depreciation (%) 2 to 2.14 2.5 to 10 5 to 16.67 5 5 5 5 5 to 33 20 to 25

Net book value

Depreciation charge - note 4.2

Closing net book value

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Additions

Disposals - note 4.3

Reclassification

Depreciation charge - note 4.2

Closing net book value

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Additions

Disposals / write off - note 4.3

 Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment  Vehicles  Total

Rupees

Leasehold
land

 Building on
leasehold land

 Plant and
Machinery

Pipelines
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4.2 Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows: 

Cost of sales - note 26 502,452 167,626

Distribution and marketing expenses - note 27 3,371 4,255

Administrative expenses - note 28 3,375  5,085

Capital work-in-progress 10,604  8,494

519,802        185,460

4.3 The details of operating assets disposed / written off during the year are as follows:

2009 2008
Rupees

Cost Accumulated Net Sale Mode of Particulars of
depreciation book value proceeds disposal purchaser

Vehicle 780 780 - 185 Mr. Muhammad Naveed
" 1,328 1,015 313 332 Mr. Syed Ahsenuddin
" 782 782 - 185 Mr. Syed Ali Akber
" 900 366 534 520 Mr. Farooq Fasih
" 900 436 464 464 Mr. Imran Hashmi
" 900 422 478 478 Mr. Mati ur Rab Siddiqui
" 1,500 831 669 609 Mr. M. Imran Farookhi
" 1,269 59 1,210 991 Mr. M. Sarmad
" 859 683 176 322 Mr. Asif Rasul Khan
" 900 449 451 422 Mr. Syed Zubair Ahmed
" 900 694 206 338 Mr. Younus Ali Siddiqui

" 407 407 - 138 Mr. Noman Hassan Khan

" 1,034 1,034 - 550 A-908, Block 123, F. B.
" 999 999 - 539 Area, Gulburg, Karachi

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 90 34 56 76 Insurance claim Adamjee Insurance

Company Limited

Aggregate amount of
assets having net book
value less than
Rs. 50 each 43 40 3 30

13,591 9,031 4,560 6,179

2008 9,936 6,314 3,622 3,971

  ___________________ Rupees  ___________________

By Company
policy to existing

/ separating
executives

By auction
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4.4 Capital work-in-progress

Year ended December 31, 2008

Balance as at January 1, 2008

Additions during the year

Transferred to operating assets

Balance as at December 31, 2008

Year ended December 31, 2009

Balance as at January 1, 2009

Additions during the year

Transferred to operating assets
(note 4.4.1)

Balance as at December 31, 2009

1,925,402 109,671 30,251 168,293 7,386 2,922 331,783 2,575,708

10,597,655 53,630 31,235 64,723 31,724 24,325 808,447 11,611,739

- - - - (19,940) (20,384) - (40,324)

12,523,057 163,301 61,486 233,016 19,170 6,863 1,140,230 14,147,123

12,523,057 163,301 61,486 233,016 19,170 6,863 1,140,230 14,147,123

1,830,574 31,717 2,395 15,860 3,129 31,263 1,827,684 3,742,622

(10,608,848) (162,008) (63,589) (246,083) (16,820) (29,811) (1,513,980) (12,641,139)

3,744,783 33,010 292 2,793 5,479 8,315 1,453,934 5,248,606

Rupees

4.4.1 As referred to in note 1.2, the Company commenced work on the expansion Project in 2006, and the

Capital work-in-progress relates to the cost of this expansion Project. During the year, the Company has

commenced commercial production from the new PVC plant and declared commercial operations of

Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC), Chlor-alkali and Power plants (Gas turbines) and transferred the related costs

of these plants to operating assets. However, the Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM) plant is currently in the

test production phase.

4.4.2 The ancillary costs, directly attributable to the Project, comprise:

TotalOther ancillary
costs

(note 4.4.2)

Furniture
fixture and
equipment

Water and
gas

pipelines

Ethylene
pipeline and

power  cables

Building on
leasehold

land

Plant and
machinery

Advances
for vehicles

Salaries, wages and benefits 213,879 315,240
Training and travelling expenses 45,051 74,439
Borrowing costs, including mark-up on finances

using capitalization rate of 12.08% - net

(2008: 13.45% - net) 591,810 591,713
Legal and professional charges 31,860 43,103
Depreciation 15,053 13,763
Storage and handling 481,667 -

Others 74,614 101,972

1,453,934 1,140,230

2009 2008
Rupees
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS – Computer software

As at January 1, 2008
Cost 6,416
Accumulated amortization (3,585)
Net book value 2,831

Year ended December 31, 2008
Opening net book value 2,831
Additions at cost 7,180
Amortization charge - note 28 (749)
Closing net book value 9,262

As at January 1, 2009
Cost 13,596
Accumulated amortization (4,334)
Net book value 9,262

Year ended December 31, 2009
Opening net book value 9,262
Additions at cost 6,255
Amortization charge - note 28 (3,701)
Closing net book value 11,816

As at December 31, 2009
Cost 19,851
Accumulated amortization (8,035)
Net book value 11,816

5.1 The cost is being amortized over a period of 5 to 10 years.

Rupees

6. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
- Considered good

Executives (notes 6.1, 6.2 and 6.4)
 - Chief Executive 416 3,118
 - Other executives 90,748 117,395

91,164 120,513
Less: Current portion shown under current

assets (note 10) (52,831) (40,578)
38,333 79,935

Other employees (note 6.3) 22,719 37,944
Less: Current portion shown under current

assets (note 10) (13,577) (10,094)
9,142 27,850

47,475 107,785

2009 2008
Rupees
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6.1 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans and advances to Chief Executive and Executives.

6.2 These represent interest free loans and advances to executives for house rent, vehicles, home appliances

and investments given in accordance with the terms of employment and for purchase of the Company’s

shares under the Employees’ Share Scheme (ESS) introduced/announced by EPCL Employees’ Trust.

Loans for house rent and investments are repayable in 18 to 36 equal monthly installments. Loans for

home appliances are repayable in 5 equal annual installments. 20% of the loan for purchase of Company’s

share under ESS are repayable at the end of month 1, 12 and 24 and 40% is repayable at the end of

month 30 from the expiry date of the Option Period. Advances for vehicles are charged to profit and loss

account over a period of 3 years.

6.3 These represent interest free loans to employees for home appliances and investments, given in accordance

 with the terms of employment and for purchase of the Company’s shares under the Employees’ Share

Scheme (ESS) introduced/announced by EPCL Employees’ Trust. Loans are repayable in accordance

with the terms stated in note 6.2.

6.4 The maximum aggregate amount due from Chief Executive and executives at the end of any month during

the year was Rs. 111,540 (2008: Rs. 130,000).

6.5 The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these

financial assets can be assessed with reference to no defaults in recent history.

Balance at beginning of the year

Disbursements

Repayments

Balance at end of year

Chief Other Total Chief Other
Executive executives Executive executives

3,118 117,395 120,513 - 114,402

- 31,220 31,220 3,742 288,545

(2,702) (57,867) (60,569) (624) (285,552)

416 90,748 91,164 3,118 117,395

2009 2008

114,402

292,287

(286,176)

120,513

Total

Rupees

7. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Consumable stores 20,194

Spares 176,435 113,407

196,629 127,152

Less: Provision for slow moving stores

and spares - note 26 (3,867)

192,762 127,152

13,745

-

2009 2008
Rupees
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8.1 This includes stocks-in-transit amounting to Rs. 248,065 (2008: Rs. 155,925) and stocks held at the storage

 facilities of the following related parties:

8.2 This represents carrying value of PVC resin, net of realizable value reduction of Rs. 21,084 (2008:

Rs. 6,791).

8. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw and packing materials - note 8.1 1,168,171 327,670
Work-in-process 17,579

Finished goods
- own manufactured product - note 8.2 410,653 810,355

155- purchased product 9,035
419,688 810,510

1,605,438 1,159,473

21,293

- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited
- Dawood Hercules Chemical Limited

595,104 22,148
1,635 -

596,739 22,148

9. TRADE DEBTS, considered good

Secured (note 9.1) 256,730 69,514
Unsecured (note 9.2) 183,175

439,905 69,514

-

9.1 These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.

9.2 Includes due from following related parties:

- Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited 1,070 -
- Mitsubishi Corporation 164,228 -

165,298 -

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees
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9.3 The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these

financial assets can be assessed with reference to no defaults in recent history.

10.1 The Collector of Customs through his order dated April 11, 2008, disposed off the refund applications filed
 by the Company for the refund of custom duty paid at import stage on import of Vinyl Chloride Monomer.
 The Company based on the advice of its tax consultant, has filed an appeal before the Collector of Customs

(Appeals), Karachi dated May 31, 2008 against the aforementioned order on which no progress has been
 made. However, the Company based on prudence carries full provision against the aforementioned custom
 duty refundable in the financial statements.

10. LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good

Current portion of long term loans and
advances - note 6
- executives 52,831 40,578
- employees 13,577 10,094

66,408 50,672

Advances to employees for reimburseable expenses 824 4,201
Advances to suppliers and others 59,818 24,307
Deposits 23,145 43,131
Prepayments 66,357 26,030
Receivable from Government

- sales tax refundable 189,044 151,736
- export rebate claim 544 462
- octroi/duty claims 152 152

189,740 152,350

Accrued return on investments 92 30
Receivable from ECPL, Holding Company 1,318 153
Other receivables 3,179 85

410,881 300,959
Considered doubtful

Custom duty claims refundable 18,043 18,043
Less: Provision for impairment - note 10.1 (18,043) (18,043)

- -

Special Excise Duty (SED) refundable 36,687 36,687
Less: Provision for impairment - note 23 (36,687) (36,687)

- -

Sales tax refundable 140 140
Less: Provision for impairment (140) (140)

- -

410,881 300,959

2009 2008
Rupees
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(Amounts in thousand)

10.2 As at December 31, 2009 receivables aggregating to Rs. 54,870 (2008: Rs. 54,870) were deemed to be

impaired and have been provided for fully in these financial statements based on prudence. The remaining

balance of loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

61,398 43,648

11. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

- At fair value through profit or loss

Mutual fund securities - note 11.1

11.1 These represent investments in open end mutual funds and are valued at their respective redemption price

as at the balance sheet date.

13. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital

700,000,000 (2008: 700,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each 7,000,000 7,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
capital

520,367,677 (2008: 520,367,677) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash 5,203,677 5,203,677

12.1 Includes Rs. 23,718 (2008: Rs. 2,671) kept in a separate bank account in respect of security deposits.

12.2 This deposit has a maturity of one month and carries mark-up at the rate of 8% per annum.

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 970

Cash at bank
- on current accounts 129,269
- on saving accounts - note 12.1 68,292

197,561
19,000Short term deposits  - note 12.2

217,531

4,931
5,273

10,204

99,385

88,246

935

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees
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(Amounts in thousand)

13.1 As at December 31, 2009, Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited (ECPL) – the Holding Company holds

 292,400,000 (2008: 292,400,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

14. EMPLOYEES' SHARE OPTION SCHEME

14.1 The employees' share option scheme (the Scheme) was originally approved by the shareholders in their

Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on October 8, 2007. Under the Scheme, senior employees

who were considered critical to the business operations were granted options to purchase 5.3 million newly

issued ordinary shares at an exercise price of Rs. 22 per ordinary share. The number of options granted

was calculated by reference to how critical an employee was considered to the business and his abilities,

subject to approval by the Compensation Committee. The options carry neither right to dividends nor voting

rights. Vesting period started from the ‘grant date’ and ends on December 31, 2009, whereafter the options

can be exercised within a period of two years. Further, employees who joined the Company by October

31, 2008 and those promoted to the eligible employee grade by the same date have also been granted

options on similar terms.

Last year, the Company proposed certain changes relating to ‘grant date’ in the originally approved Scheme.

 These changes were approved by the shareholders in their EGM held on June 27, 2008, and subsequently

by the SECP on September 25, 2008. As per the approved change to the Scheme the ‘grant date’ is the

date of EGM held on October 8, 2007, when the Scheme was originally approved.

14.2 The amounts recognized in these financial statements in respect of the Scheme are as follows:

14.2.1 Employee share compensation reserve

9,858
Unvested share options lapsed during the year (545)

9,313

14.2.2 Deferred employee share compensation expense

4,381
Unvested share options lapsed during the year (545)
Amortization for the year/period (3,836)

-Balance at end of the year

Balance at beginning of the year/recognized on

Balance at end of the year

Balance at beginning of the year/recognized on

the date of grant

the date of grant

9,858

9,858
-

-

9,858

(5,477)
4,381

2009 2008
Rupees
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15.1 During the year, the Company entered into a Syndicate Term Finance Agreement with a consortium

of local banks for Rs. 1,500,000. The facility, in addition to the mark-up, also carries a monitoring fee of

Rs. 300 for the first year and Rs. 500 per annum, thereafter. Commitment fee at rate of

0.15% per annum is also payable on that part of the finance that has not been drawn down.

During the year, the entire facility has been drawn down.

15.2 During the year, the Company has drawn down the remaining balance of US $ 30,000 against

the loan agreement / facility with International Finance Corporation (IFC).

15.3 The above finances are secured by:

(i) a first mortgage by deposit of title deeds over Project Properties ranking pari passu with

facilities against LCs referred to in note 22.3;

(ii) a first mortgage by deposit of title deeds over leasehold land (30 acres) of the Project

together with the buildings, plant, machinery and other equipment thereon ranking pari

passu with the facilities referred to in note 22.3; and

(Amounts in thousand)

14.3 The Company used Black Scholes pricing model to calculate the fair value of share options at
the grant date. The fair value of the share options as per the model and underlying assumptions are as
follows:

Total number of share options issued 5,300,000
Fair value of the share options at grant date Rs. 1.86
Share price at grant date
Exercise price
Annual volatility based on historical pattern
Risk free rate used
Expected dividends

Rs. 18
Rs. 22

15.13%
10.12%

Nil

15. LONG TERM BORROWINGS, Secured

Mark - up rate
per annum Number

2009 2008

Syndicated term finance I 13 half yearly November 2010 5,655,127 5,648,525

Morabaha finance 8 half yearly September 2009 - 100,000

Long term finance utilized under
mark-up arrangements 5 half yearly June 2007 - 30,000

Syndicated term finance II (note 15.1) 13 half yearly June 2010 1,485,599 -

International Finance

Corporation (IFC) (note 15.2) 15 half yearly June 2010 5,010,830 2,324,547

12,151,556 8,103,072

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (1,016,393) (130,000)

11,135,163 7,973,072

6 months LIBOR + 2.6 to 3%

Rupees

Installments

6 months KIBOR + 2.25%

Commencing from

6 months KIBOR + 0.5%

6 months KIBOR + 3%

6 months KIBOR + 0.5%
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17.1 This represents amounts retained from progress payments made to contractors/suppliers against work

completed on the Project, referred to in note 1.2.

(Amounts in thousand)

(iii) hypothecation by way of:

- a first charge over all Project Assets, ranking pari passu with facilities referred to in note 22.3; and

- a first charge over all present and future moveable fixed assets other than Project Assets.

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements for notional amounts aggregating to US$

40,000, with banks to hedge its interest rate exposure on floating rate foreign currency borrowings from

International Finance Corporation (IFC). Under the swap agreements, the Company would receive six

month USD-LIBOR on respective notional amounts and will pay fix rates, which will be settled semi annually.

Details of the swap agreements are as follows:

17. RETENTION MONEY AGAINST PROJECT PAYMENTS

Amounts retained as at December 31 - note 17.1 801,718 792,478

Less: Current portion shown under current
liabilities - note 20 (801,718) (239,033)

- 553,445

Notional
Amounts

US $

Effective
 Date

Termination
Date

Fixed Rate
%

Fair values

    15,000 December 15, 2008 June 15, 2017 3.385 23,770
      5,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 3.005 1,838
    15,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 2.795 (4,570)
      5,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 2.800 (1,103)

    40,000           19,935           60,154

60,154
-
-
-

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees
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(Amounts in thousand)

18. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Credit balances arising due to:

 - accelerated tax depreciation 3,061,376 548,080

 - net borrowing costs capitalized 207,133 160,054
3,268,509 708,134

Debit balances arising due to:

- recoupable carried forward
tax losses - note 18.1 (2,725,269) (153,887)

- unrealized foreign exchange losses, unpaid
liabilities and provision for retirement and
other service benefits (46,581) (25,243)

- provision against custom duty and
SED refundable (6,454)

- provision for slow moving stores and spares (1,353)

- fair value of hedging instrument (6,977) (21,054)

- share issuance cost, net to equity (51,566) (51,566)

- recoupable minimum turnover tax (108,789) (67,356)
(2,946,989) (325,560)

321,520 382,574

18.1 Deferred income tax asset is recognized for tax losses available for carry-forward to the extent that the

realization of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The aggregate tax losses

available for carry-forward at December 31, 2009 amount to Rs. 7,786,483 (2008: Rs. 439,677), on which

the deferred income tax asset has been recognized.

(6,454)

-

19. RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE
BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Service incentive plan 34,172 35,524
Additional death gratuity - note 34 4,140 2,976

38,312 38,500

2009 2008
Rupees

2009 2008
Rupees
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other creditors - note 20.1 1,223,536 797,211
Accrued liabilities 523,718 317,713
Advances from customers 399,002 118,232
Current portion of retention money - note 17 801,718 239,033
Security deposits 23,610 2,510
Workers' profits participation fund - note 20.2 28,659 24,625
Workers' welfare fund - 9,357
Others 1,779 2,293

3,002,022 1,510,974

20.1 Includes amount due to following related parties:

- Mitsubishi Corporation 1,152,402 740,811
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited 77,045 15,046

1,229,447 755,857

20.2 Workers' profits participation fund

Balance as at January 1 24,625 30,988
Add: Allocation for the year - note 29 - 24,625
Add: Interest thereon - note 31 4,034 -

28,659 55,613

Less: Payments made during the year - (30,988)

Balance as at December 31 28,659 24,625

21. ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP

Finance cost accrued on:
- long term borrowings 196,483 157,678
- short term borrowings 9,289 9,590

205,772 167,268

(Amounts in thousand)

22. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Running finance utilized under mark-up
 arrangements - note 22.1 394,241 717,568

Short term finance - note 22.2 125,000

594,241 842,568

200,000

2008
Rupees

2009
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(Amounts in thousand)

22.1 The aggregate facilities for running finance available from various banks, represents the sales price of

all mark-up arrangements, amount to Rs. 2,200,000 (2008: Rs. 1,275,000). The corresponding purchase

price is payable on various dates during the ensuing year. Mark-up is chargeable at rates net of prompt

payment rebate, ranging from relevant period KIBOR plus 0.9% to relevant period KIBOR plus 3% (2008:

 relevant period KIBOR plus 1.25% to relevant period KIBOR plus 3%). During the year, the mark-up rates,

 net of prompt payment rebate, ranged from 12.39% to 17.37% per annum (2008: 10.37% to 17.6% per

annum).

22.2 During the year, the Company entered into a short term financing arrangement of Rs. 200,000 with a local

bank to obtain export refinance available at concessionary rate. The finance carries mark-up at the

equivalent State Bank of Pakistan rate plus 1% per annum. The finance is secured by a floating charge of

Rs. 250,000 upon all present and future current assets of the Company. The principal amount of the

facility is payable in lump sum at maturity on April 30, 2010.

22.3 The facility for opening letters of credit as at December 31, 2009 aggregate to Rs. 4,794,000 (2008:

Rs. 9,468,000). The amount utilized at December 31, 2009 was Rs. 1,933,000 (2008: Rs. 1,232,000). The

facilities carry commission at the rate of 0.05% per quarter.

As at December 31, 2009, the Company had paid Rs. 94,611 (2008: Rs. 91,616) on account of Special

Excise Duty (SED) on import of plant and machinery for the Project. Out of this amount the Company has

adjusted Rs. 57,924 (2008: Rs. 54,929) in the monthly sales tax returns against SED on goods produced

and sold by the Company. The Company had approached the Federal Board of Revenue to obtain a

clarification in respect of the adjustment of SED made by the Company in monthly sales tax returns.

Pending such clarification the Company based on prudence had made provision for the adjusted amount

of Rs. 57,924 and for the balance remaining of Rs. 36,687 included in loans, advance, deposits, prepayments

and other receivables. However, during the year, the Company received show cause notices from the

Additional Collector (Adjudication) – Federal Board of Revenue, stating that the Company, by adjusting

 the aforementioned SED, has violated the provisions of the Federal Excise Act, 2005 and the Federal

Excise Rules, 2005 read with SRO 655(1)/2007 and that the amount adjusted is recoverable from the

23. PROVISIONS

Balance at beginning of the year 54,929 -
Add: Recognized during the year 2,995 54,929

57,924 54,929
Add: Provision for surcharge thereon 12,570 -

Balance at end of the year 70,494 54,929

2008
Rupees

2009
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(Amounts in thousand)

 

Company under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 along with default surcharge and penalty. In response to

these notices the Company has filed a Constitutional Petition before the Honourable High Court, Sindh,

on May 18, 2009. The High Court is in the process of evaluating the Constitutional Petition. The Company

is confident that the ultimate outcome of the matter will be in its favour, however, based on prudence is

maintaining the aforementioned provision. Further, a provision of Rs. 12,570 for surcharge and penalty

there against upto December 31, 2009 has also been made.

24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Commitments

24.1.1 Capital expenditure for the Project, referred to in note 1.2, under the contracts signed as at December

31, 2009, but not yet incurred amounts to Rs. 721,859 (2008: Rs. 1,305,738).

24.1.2 Performance guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the Company as at December 31, 2009 amounts

to Rs. 581,111 (2008: Rs. 264,200).

25. NET REVENUE

Gross local sales 12,226,263 9,455,612

Supply of electricity - note 25.1 214,924 24,177

12,441,187 9,479,789

Less:

- Sales tax 2,165,095 1,606,119
- Special excise duty 103,988 78,363
- Discounts 3,437 6,150

2,272,520 1,690,632
10,168,667 7,789,157

Export sales 1,463,441 79,223

11,632,108 7,868,380

25.1

Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited
 - Holding Company 47,070 24,177

Karachi Electricity Supply Company 167,854 -

214,924 24,177

Supply of electricity represents supply of
surplus power to the following:

(Restated)
2008

Rupees

2009
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(Amounts in thousand)

26. COST OF SALES

Opening stock of work-in-progress 21,293 22,861

Raw and packing materials consumed 7,904,707 6,254,555

Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 26.2 211,896 97,332

Fuel, power and gas 771,237 158,437

Repairs and maintenance 49,292 10,797

Depreciation - note 4.2 502,452 167,626

Consumable stores 91,649 21,310

Purchased services 54,458
-

Storage and handling - note 26.3 339,425 139,405
Training and travelling expenses 5,943 11,185
Communication, stationery and other office expenses 2,971 2,211
Insurance 51,050 10,597
Other expenses 18,558 5,061

10,007,505 6,903,598

Closing stock of work-in-progress - note 8 (17,579) (21,293)

Cost of goods manufactured 10,011,219 6,905,166

Opening stock of finished goods 810,355 640,170
Closing stock of finished goods - note 8 (410,653) (810,355)

399,702 (170,185)

Cost of sales  - own manufactured product 10,410,921 6,734,981
Cost of goo ld - purchased product - note 26.1 7,671 677

10,418,592 6,735,658

26.1 Cost of sales - purchased product

Opening stock 155 147
Add: Purchases 16,551 685
Less: Closing stock - note 8 (9,035) (155)

7,671 677

26.2 This includes Rs. 11,441 (2008: Rs. 5,648), in respect of staff retirement and benefits referred to in note 34.

Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 7 3,867
25,082

2008
Rupees

2009
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26.3 The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements with Al-Rahim Trading Terminal and Dawood

 Hercules Chemicals Limited – a related party, for storage and handling of Ethylene Di Chloride and Caustic

soda, respectively. The total lease rentals due under these lease arrangements are payable in periodic

monthly installments till July 31, 2019.

The future aggregate lease payments under these arrangements are as follows:

Not later than 1 year 43,398 -

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 57,600 -

Later than 5 years 64,800 -

165,798 -

27.1 This includes Rs. 3,228 (2008: Rs. 2,613), in respect of staff retirement and benefits, referred to in note 34.

27. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 27.1 50,641 42,535
Advertising, sales promotion and entertainment 50,921 30,669
Product transportation and handling 359,969 202,208
Rent, rates and taxes 3,625 5,524
Purchased services 3,367 9,695
Insurance 1,002 919
Depreciation - note 4.2 3,371 4,255
Training and travelling expenses 6,473 7,872
Communication, stationery and other

office expenses 2,041 2,709
Other expenses 2,404 5,254

483,814 311,640

2008
Rupees

2009
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28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 28.1 76,563 93,014
Rent, rates and taxes 17,088 13,560
Purchased services 24,057 8,733
Insurance 645 154
Depreciation - note 4.2 3,375 5,085
Amortization - note 5 3,701 749
Training and travelling expenses 47,760 18,557
Communication, stationery and other

office expenses 22,191 13,846
Other expenses 10,362 9,484

205,742 163,182

28.1 This includes Rs. 7,951 (2008: Rs. 6,056), in respect of staff retirement and benefits, referred to in

note 34.

29. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Legal and professional charges 8,030 5,804
Auditors' remuneration - note 29.1 1,582 1,239
Donations - note 29.2 7,527 1,527
Unrealized fair value loss on short term investments - 2,352
Security deposit written-off - 217
Export rebate claim written-off - 1,195
Workers' profits participation fund - note 20.2 - 24,625
Workers' welfare fund - 9,357
Provision against custom duty refundable - note 10 - 18,043
Foreign exchange loss (net) 213,373 229,428
Others 1,499 -

232,011 293,787
29.1 Auditors’ remuneration

Fee for:
- Annual statutory audit 580 530
- Half yearly review 175 150
- Review of compliance with Code of

Corporate Governance 50 50
805 730

Taxation and other advisory services 640 389
Reimbursement of expenses 137 120

1,582 1,239

2008
Rupees

2009

2008
Rupees

2009
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29.2 The recipients of donations for the year do not include any donee in whom a director or his spouse had

any interest.

30. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

On financial assets

Income on short term investment and bank deposit 63,869 46,643
Gain on sale of short term investments 36,693 69,879
Unrealized fair value gain on short term investments 2,464 -
Foreign exchange gain - net 10,180 -
Others 149 7,260

On non-financial assets

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,619 349
Scrap sales 1,448 814

116,422 124,945

31. FINANCE COSTS

Interest /Mark-up on:
- long term borrowings 554,898 18,212
- short term borrowings 28,000 8,244

Accrued interest on payable to Workers' Profits
Participation Fund - note 20.2 4,034 -

Guarantee commission 2,511 979
Bank charges and others 16,732 6,096

606,175 33,531

32. TAXATION

Current
- for the year - note 32.1 71,787 793
- for prior years (97) -

71,690 793
Deferred - for the year (75,131) 104,450

(3,441) 105,243

32.1 Current year charge represents minimum tax at the rate of 0.5% of the turnover, in accordance with section

113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, inserted through Finance Act, 2009 and tax under presumptive

tax regime on export sales.

2008

Rupees

2009
(Restated)

2008

Rupees

2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

154
Annual Report 2009

(Amounts in thousand)

32.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The tax on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Company’s applicable tax rates as follows:

2008
Rupees

2009

(Loss) / Profit before taxation (197,137) 455,596

Tax calculated at applicable rate of 35% (2008: 35%) (68,998) 159,459

Tax effect of exempt income and income subject
to lower tax rates (10,374) (23,665)

Un-recoupable minimum turnover tax 15,720 14,557

Effect of adjustments in opening written down
values and carried forward losses 60,211 (45,108)

Tax expense for the year (3,441) 105,243

33. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE – Basic and diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since the average market price

of the Company’s share is less then the exercise price of the share’s options granted to employees,

referred to in note 14. The basic earnings per share of the Company is based on:

2009 2008

(Loss) / Profit for the year (193,696) 350,353

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousand) 520,367 517,633

34. RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

The latest actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plans was carried out as at December 31, 2008 using

the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’. Details of the defined benefit plans are as follows:
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2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Rupees

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund  Additional Death Gratuity
Scheme

34.1 Balance sheet reconciliation

Present value of defined
benefit obligations 78,994 68,644 26,048 22,888 - -

Fair value of plan assets (88,607) (73,582) (27,618) (21,821) - -
(Surplus) / Deficit (9,613) (4,938) (1,570) 1,067 - -
Present value of unfunded

obligations - - - - 4,523 3,359
Unrecognized net actuarial

gains / (losses) 9,613 4,938 1,570 (1,067) (383) (383)
Net liability at the end of the year - - - - 4,140 2,976

34.2 Movement in the defined
benefit obligations

Obligation as at January 1 68,644 53,267 22,888 19,600 3,359 2,429
Current service cost 6,841 5,525 3,270 2,223 680 413
Interest cost 9,704 5,603 3,300 2,049 481 246
Actuarial losses / (gains) - 4,754 - 4,280 3 271
Benefits paid (6,195) (505) (3,410) (5,264) - -
Obligation as at December 31 78,994 68,644 26,048 22,888 4,523 3,359

34.3 Movement in the fair value
of plan assets

Fair value as at January 1 73,582 62,237 21,821 21,742 - -
Expected return on plan assets 10,350 6,449 3,160 2,253 - -
Actuarial gains - 905 - 1,071 - -
Employer contributions 6,195 4,496 3,410 2,019 - -
Benefits paid (1,520) (505) (773) (5,264) - -
Fair value as at December 31 88,607 73,582 27,618 21,821 - -

34.4 The amounts recognized in
the profit and loss
account are as follows:

Current service cost 6,841 5,525 3,270 2,223 680 413
Interest cost 9,704 5,603 3,300 2,049 481 246
Expected return on plan assets (10,350) (6,449) (3,160) (2,253) - -
Recognition of actuarial

(gains) / losses - (183) - - 3 -
Expense 6,195 4,496 3,410 2,019 1,164 659

34.5 Actual return on plan assets (3,867) 2,461 (222) 827 - -

34.6 Expected future costs for the year ending December 31, 2010:

Rupees

- Pension Fund 6,266
- Gratuity Fund 3,444
- Additional Death Gratuity Scheme 1,254

10,964
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34.7 Principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:

2009 2008 2009 2008

Discount rate 14% 14% 14% 14%
Expected rate of return per annum

on plan assets 14% 14% 14% 14%
Expected rate of increase per annum

on future salaries 13% 13% 13% 13%

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

34.8 Plan assets comprise of following:

2009 2008 2009 2008

Equity 36,329 25,754 11,323 14,402
Debt 47,848 25,754 13,809 6,110
Others 4,430 22,074 2,486 1,309

88,607 73,582 27,618 21,821

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

Rupees

34.9 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based
on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Pension Fund

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 78,994 68,644 53,267 44,310 34,760

Fair value of plan assets (88,607) (73,582) (62,237) (47,516) (34,861)

(Surplus) / Deficit (9,613) (4,938) (8,970) (3,206) (101)

Gratuity Fund

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 26,048 22,888 19,600 16,145 12,784

Fair value of plan assets (27,618) (21,821) (21,742) (15,665) (12,870)

(Surplus) / Deficit (1,570) 1,067 (2,142) 480 (86)

Rupees

34.10 Historical information of staff retirement benefits:
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34.11 During the year, Rs. 22,620 (2008: Rs. 8,658) has been recognized in the profit and loss account in respect

of defined contribution provident fund.

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration to Chief Executive and
executives are as follows:

Chief Executives Chief Executives
Executive Executive

Managerial remuneration 12,538 241,176 11,076 184,954

Retirement benefit funds 1,355 9,159 1,579 10,955

Bonus paid - - 5,366 40,999

Employee share option scheme 986 2,850 1,229 4,218

Other benefits 1,425 21,392 1,318 17,565

Total 16,304 274,577 20,568 258,691

Number of persons 1 141 1 121

2009 2008

Rupees

35.1 The Company also provides household items and vehicles for the use of Chief Executive and
certain executives.

36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Loss) / Profit before taxation (197,137) 455,596
Adjustments for non cash charges

 and other items:
Provision for staff retirement and

other service benefits 10,769 14,898
Provision against custom duty refundable - 18,043

   Depreciation 509,198 185,460
Amortization 3,701 749
Amortization of deferred employee share

compensation expense 3,836 5,477
Provision for slow moving stores and spares 3,867 -
Income on short term investments and bank deposits (63,869) (46,643)
Gain realized on sale of short term investments (36,693) (69,879)
Provision against SED 15,565 91,616
Finance costs 602,141 33,532
Interest accrued on Workers' Profits

Unrealized gain
4,034 -

Profit on disposal of operating assets (1,619)
1,048,466

Working capital changes - note 36.1 691,321

1,542,650

 Participation Fund
(2,464)

(349)
235,257
(30,707)

660,146

2,353

2008

Rupees

2009
(Restated)
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2008
Rupees

2009

38.2 Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost

Long term borrowings 11,135,163 7,973,072
Derivative financial instruments 19,935 60,154
Retention money against project payments - 553,445
Retirement and other service benefit obligations 38,312 38,500
Current portion of long term borrowings 1,016,393 130,000
Trade and other payables 2,574,361 1,358,760
Accrued interest/mark-up 205,772 167,268
Short term borrowings 594,241 842,568

15,584,177 11,123,767

38.

38.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per balance sheet

At fair value through profit and loss
Short term investments 61,398 43,648

Loans and receivables
Long term loans and advances 47,475 107,785
Trade debts - considered good 439,905 69,514
Loans, advances, deposits, and other receivables 94,142 94,071
Cash and bank balances 217,531 99,385

860,451 414,403

36.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

   Stores and spares (69,477) (31,433)
   Stock-in-trade (445,965) (239,334)
   Trade debts (370,391) 108,958

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables (net) (109,860) (95,550)

(795,693) (257,359)
Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 1,487,014 226,652

691,321 (30,707)

37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances - note 12 217,531 99,385
Short term borrowings - note 22 (394,241) (842,568)

(176,710) (743,183)

   Short term finance 200,000 -
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38.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable

willing parties in an arms length transaction.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate

their fair values.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

39.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk (currency risk, interest

rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management program focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects on the

Company’s financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain

risk factors. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance department under guidance of the

 Company’s Board of Directors.

a) Market risk

i) Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from currency exposures primarily with respect to US Dollars. The risk arises from outstanding
payments for imports, recognized assets and liabilities in foreign currency and future commercial
transactions. In the current economic environment, the Company is significantly exposed to currency
risk because of the expected volatility in exchange rates. The Company used to manage the currency
risk through forward exchange contracts, however, since last year is unable to hedge its foreign
exchange risk exposure due to restriction on forward-covers imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan.
Currently, the Company manages the foreign currency risk through close monitoring of currency market.
At December 31, 2009 the financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange risk amount
to Rs. 248,323 (2008: Rs. 88,276) and Rs. 7,009,120 (2008: Rs. 3,117,025) respectively.

At December 31, 2009, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the US
Dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss/profit for the year would have been higher/lower

 by Rs. 219,726 (2008: Rs. 98,434), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of US Dollar-denominated liabilities. However, this change in profitability would have been offset by
a corresponding change in margins as bulk of revenues is linked with movements in exchange rates.

ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate
risk arising from long and short term borrowings. Borrowing at variable rates exposes the Company
to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas, borrowing at fixed rates exposes the Company to fair value
interest rate risk.
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To manage its cash flow interest rate risk, the Company has entered into floating to fixed rate interest

swaps on its foreign currency borrowings. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of

converting floating rates to fixed rates. Under the interest rate swap agreement, the Company has

agreed with the banks to exchange, at half yearly intervals, the difference between fixed contracted

rates and the floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.

At December 31, 2009, if interest rate on Company’s borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all

other variables held constant, post tax loss/profit for the year would have been higher/lower by Rs.

34,964 (2008: Rs. 1,453) mainly as a result of higher/lower interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

iii) Other price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),

 whether those change are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer

or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed

to equity securities price risk as currently the Company has no investments in listed securities.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to discharge their

obligations. 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, advances,

deposits and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount

of financial assets.

The Company is not materially exposed to credit risk as unsecured credit is provided to selected parties

with no history of default. Moreover, major part of trade debts are secured by bank guarantees and

letters of credit from customers. Further, credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter

parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance

of such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are

neither past due nor impaired are as follows:

2008
Rupees

2009

Long term loan and advances 47,475 107,785
Trade debts - considered good 439,905 69,514
Loan, advances, deposits and other receivables 94,142 94,071
Cash and bank balances 217,531 97,273

860,451 412,291

Short term investments 61,398 43,648
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The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with

no defaults in recent history. The credit quality of the Company’s liquid funds can be assessed with

reference to external credit ratings of banks as follows:

Bank
Short term Long term

Allied Bank Limited AA A1+
Askari Commercial Bank Limited AA A1+
Bank AlFalah Limited AA A1+
Bank AlHabib AA A1+
Barclays Bank A1+ AA+
Citibank A1+ AA+
Deutsche Bank A2 A
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited AA A1+
Faysal Bank Limited AA A1+
Habib Bank Limited AA+ A1+
HSBC Bank Middle East Limited A1+ AA
MCB Bank Limited AA+ A1+
Meezan Bank Limited A+ A1
National Bank of Pakistan AA+ A1+
NIB Bank Limited AA- A1+
Samba Bank Limited A A
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) AAA A1+
United Bank Limited AA+ A1+

Rating

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Company’s liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash
and marketable securities, the availability of funds through an adequate amount of credit facilities and through
its ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company aims at

 maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses how management monitors net liquidity based on details of the remaining
contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings 1,016,393 11,135,163 12,151,556 130,000 7,973,072 8,103,072
Derivative financial instruments - 19,935 19,935 - 60,154 60,154
Retention money against project

payments 801,718 - 801,718 239,033 553,445 792,478
Retirement and other service

benefit obligations - 38,312 38,312 - 38,500 38,500
Trade and other payables 1,772,643 - 1,772,643 1,119,727 - 1,119,727
Accrued interest / mark-up 205,772 - 205,772 167,268 - 167,268
Short term borrowings 594,241 - 594,241 842,568 - 842,568

4,390,767 11,193,410 15,584,177 2,498,596 8,625,171 11,123,767

2009 2008

Rupees

Maturity upto
 one year

Total TotalMaturity after
 one year

Maturity upto
 one year

Maturity after
 one year

Rating agency

PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
S & P
S & P
S & P
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
S & P
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
S & P
PACRA
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Net settled derivatives comprise interest rate swaps used by the Company to manage the Company’s

interest rate profile. The Company’s net settled derivative financial instruments with a negative fair value

have been included at their fair value of Rs. 19,935 (2008: Rs. 60,154) in the maturity analysis because

the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. These contracts

are managed on a net-fair value basis as well as maturity date.

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going

concern and to provide expected returns to its shareholders by maintaining optimum capital structure to 

minimize the cost of capital.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new equity, manage dividend payouts

to its shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratio at certain levels. This ratio is calculated as

long term borrowings, as disclosed in note 15, divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’

as shown in the balance sheet plus long term borrowings.

The gearing ratio at December 31, 2008 and 2009 was as follows:

2008
Rupees

2009

Long term borrowings - note 15 11,135,163 7,973,072

Total equity 6,395,643 6,563,742

Total capital 17,530,806 14,536,814

Gearing ratio 0.635 0.548

41. SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, on August 1, 2009, the Company declared commercial production of Caustic soda and

also commenced supply of surplus power to KESC. Therefore, based on the internal management reporting

structure, the Company is organized into three business segments based on the products produced and

sold as follows:

  - Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals;

  - Caustic soda and allied chemicals; and

  - Power supplies.
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Management monitors the operating results of abovementioned segments separately for the purpose of

making decisions about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Segment performance

is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in table below, is

measured differently from profit or loss in the financial statements. Segment results and assets include

items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Finance cost, other operating income and expenses, and taxation are managed at Company level. Further,

unallocated assets include long term investment, long term loan and advances, loans, advances, prepayments

and other receivables, taxes recoverable, deferred employee share compensation expense, short term

investments, and cash and bank balances.

The following table presents the profit or loss and total assets for the operating segments of the Company:

Poly Vinyl Caustic Power

Chloride (PVC) soda and supply

Total

and allied allied

chemicals chemicals

Revenue 10,518,301 928,528 185,279 11,632,108

Profit or loss before

unallocated expenses 468,403 192,809 69,158 730,370

Unallocated expenses

Administrative expenses (205,742)

Other operating expenses (232,011)

Other operating income 116,422

Finance costs (606,175)

Taxation 3,441

Loss after taxation (193,695)

Total segment assets 13,190,511 6,368,873 132,333 19,691,717

Unallocated assets 3,107,778

Total assets as per the balance sheet 22,799,495

2009
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42. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

42.1 Transactions with related parties other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements are as follows:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Holding Company

- Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited Purchase of services 17,309 9,824
Sale of goods 3,195 -
Sale of services 3,313 2,807
Sale of steam and electricity 51,736 28,859
Use of operating assets 4,139 2,685
Pension fund contribution 4,119 2,208
Provident fund contribution 3,036 3,322
Medical contribution 88 74
Gratuity fund contribution 252 -

Associated Company

- Mitsubishi Corporation Purchase of goods 7,941,021 6,191,979
Sale of goods 1,268,211 78,648

Related parties by virtue of
common directorship

- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited Purchase of services 1,564,559 142,293
Sale of services 1,614 1,219

- Engro PowerGen Limited Sale of services 424 -

- Engro Foods Limited Sale of goods 301 -

- Central Insurance Company Limited Insurance 4,701 458

- ICI Pakistan Limited Directors fee 10 15
Purchase of goods 13,016 4,102

- IGI Pakistan Limited Purchase of services 2,304 -

- Dawood Hercules Chemicals Ltd. Sales of services - 37
Purchase of services 5,745 -
Reimbursements - 71

- Indus Valley School of Art and Purchase of services - 100
Architecture

- Lahore University of Management Purchase of services 156 248
Sciences

- Management Association of Purchase of services and Annual subscription 24 120
Pakistan

- Port Qasim Authority Purchase of services 300 11,095
Purchase of goods 5,138 -

- Overseas Investors Chambers of Advertisement (Purchase of services) - 27
Commerce & Industry Annual subscription - 165

Training course (Purchase of services) - 5

2008
Rupees

2009
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Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Related parties by virtue of

common directorship

- Pakistan Institute of Corporate Purchase of services 80 -
Governance

- Inbox Business Technologies Purchase of goods - 785
(Pvt) Ltd Setup of software 150 150

- Avanceon Limited Purchase of goods 2,470 -
Purchase of services 575 409

- Actis Assets Ltd. Directors fee - 5

- UBL Funds Investments in liquidity funds 100,000 -

Directors fee 175 -

Key management personnel Managerial remuneration 52,181 47,046
Retirement benefit funds 3,963 4,177
Bonus - 18,052
Employee share option scheme 2,542 2,577
Other benefits 4,381 4,155

42.2 Sales, purchases and other transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and

conditions.

42.3 The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2009 are disclosed in the respective

notes.

43. PRODUCTION CAPACITY

43.1 Commencement of commercial production of the new PVC plant was from January 1, 2009 and that of

Chlor-alkali plant was from August 1, 2009.

2009 2008 2009 2008

PVC resin 150,000 100,000 115,620 98,660

Caustic soda 106,000 - 38,739 - Note - 43.1

Designed Actual
Production Remarks

Metric tons

 Annual Capacity

Production planned as
per market demand

2008
Rupees

2009
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44. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

For better presentation, the following major reclassification in the corresponding figures has been made:

Head of account in the
financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2009

Net revenue - note 25

Head of account in the
financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2008

Other operating income - note 30

Description

Supply of electricity

Rupees

20,843

The effect of other reclassifications is not material.

45. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on January 21, 2010 by the Board of Directors of

the Company.

Asif Qadir
President & Chief Executive

Masaharu Domichi
Director
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